Loftware[®] NiceLabel

10.2 Release Notes

Rev-2022-11



Table of Contents

1. New in NiceLabel Cloud	3
1.1. Changes in the NiceLabel Cloud Essentials	3
1.1.1. Added the integration capability	3
1.1.2. Simplified approval process	3
1.2. Redesigned Control Center user interface	3
1.2.1. Updated workspace to manage your documents	4
1.2.2. Uploading files	5
1.2.3. Searching	5
1.2.4. Keyboard shortcuts	6
1.2.5. Recycle bin	6
1.2.6. Previewing files	7
1.2.7. Comparing files	8
1.2.8. Label report	8
1.2.9. Revision history	9
1.2.10. Approval workflows	. 10
1.2.11. Digital signature support	. 11
1.2.12. Decommissioning and recommissioning files	. 11
1.2.13. Old NiceLabel file types (LBL, XFF, MIS) are not supported in Control Center	
anymore	. 12
1.3. Printing labels from a browser	. 12
1.4. Support for Cloud data sources	. 13
1.5. Enhanced integrations	. 14
1.5.1. Asynchronous requests for LPS trigger	. 14
1.5.2. Support for double quote characters in PAS files	
1.5.3. Updated HTTP status codes for Workday API	. 15
1.5.4. Enabled multi-threading on Windows 11	
1.5.5. Get Label Information action is available in Automation Pro	
1.5.6. Updates to the XML command file structure	. 16
1.6. Cloud Print API updates	
1.7. Document API updates	. 17
2. New in Designers	
2.1. ANSI MH.10.8.2 (ASC) function update	
2.2. Updated support for GS1-128 standard	
2.3. Support for "bar width reduction/pixel shaving" in 2D codes	
2.4. Label Converter updates	
3. New in Label Management System	
3.1. Windows Server 2012 R2 is no longer supported	
3.2. Microsoft SQL Server 2016 or above is required for the Control Center	
3.3. The application server feature is no longer supported	
3.4. Configurable execution timeout in DBTool	
4. New in printer drivers	
4.1. New printer family drivers	
4.2. Added support for enhanced status checking	. 22

1. New in NiceLabel Cloud

1.1. Changes in the NiceLabel Cloud Essentials

1.1.1. Added the integration capability

The NiceLabel integration platform is now available also in the NiceLabel Cloud Essentials Product to automate printing out of your existing business applications.

NiceLabel Automation is available with the NiceLabel Cloud Essentials and runs at the Easy product level. You can configure integrations with the data coming in from your business system to file drop, database, serial port, or TCP/IP raw communication. The Automation Easy supports CSV and unstructured text data structures to quickly build entry-level integrations.

The Automation Easy supports the entire NiceLabel printer driver portfolio and can also print using third-party printer drivers.

1.1.2. Simplified approval process

The users of NiceLabel Cloud Essentials can use the built-in Label production approval process that supports the most frequently used practice of single-step approval.

In this case, the label designer creates the label template based on the specifications and submits the label template to the approval process. The QA team member will receive a task, test the label design with the real-case data, and either approve or reject the label. When the label is approved, it becomes visible to production users and available for printing. When the label is rejected, the label designer receives a notification and must make the necessary changes as reported by the reviewer.

You can also use email notifications.



NOTE

In the previous version, you could use several approval processes.

1.2. Redesigned Control Center user interface

We continued the redesign of the Control Center user interface to the responsive Angular framework. In this release, the last important piece of the Control Center functionality was moved to the platform – **the Document Storage**.

The UI change followed the same path of updates already done for the rest of the Control Center and brings the following important updates:

- · More modern, more user-friendly, faster, and more responsive user interface
- · Faster data access with fewer clicking
- · Additional keyboard shortcuts
- Label previews

1.2.1. Updated workspace to manage your documents

The big obvious new change when you look at the new Control Center is the total overhaul of the user interface. The look and feel remain similar but use new components that provide faster and more intuitive usage of the system. We have carefully redesigned the workspace to modern UI approaches. There is a lot of information available at once, while still not cluttering the screen real estate.

Starting with the workspace composition, there are three panes available, the tree view of the folder structure on the left, the main area with documents from the selected folder in the center, and the information pane on the right side. The information pane is a new component and provides shortcuts to frequently used functionalities that previously required more clicking in the UI. The pane will also display the last five file modification events and details of the last five revisions.

The information pane also displays the preview of the selected label, its basic properties, and the versioning and workflow statuses. You will also have direct access to the history of file changes and their revisions.

You can quickly add or remove the columns you want to use in the displayed grid. You can also click the column names to sort by that column in ascending or descending order. This is a quick shortcut to sort files by the modification date.

The toolbar with icons is no longer available in the new document storage. You would interact with the system using context menus right-clicking the items, using keyboard shortcuts, and using the actions in the property editor on the right-hand side of the workspace. You can right-click folders and files to see the available actions in the context menu.

ILoftware IiceLabel ontrol Center	All Files Documents / All Files / Labels All Files Workflow Requests	Recycle Bin	n						0
Dashboard	v Root	New					Q. Search		××
Documents	NiceLabel-Samples	-	Name 1		Modifie	1	Size	INFO LOGS REVISI	IONS
Applications	Graphics		AIAG 810 6x6 MasterLabel.nlbl	Ν		2, 12:53:57 PM	7.77 KB	AJAG B10 6x6 Master	
Integrations	Labels		DummyLabeLnibl	Edit on Desktop		22, 10:53:16 AM	3.1 KB	AIAG BIO 6x6 Master Preview	Labernioi
Printers	Test		ECIA Logistic Label.nlbl	🔂 Print		22, 10:13:14 PM	9.65 KB	Constant Name	Company Name
History	▶ <mark></mark> USERS		GS1-128.nlbl	Rename Download	F2	22, 10:49:15 AM	7.33 KB	Address 1 Address 2 City,W2p	Address 1 City,WIZip
Analytics			HIBC.Nbl	Preview		22, 10:15:38 PM	13.9 KB		ER LABEL
🖁 Users			LabelWithExcelOneDrive.nlbl	Compare		22, 11:08:46 AM	8.07 KB		7890123456
Administration		i o	限 SimpleLabeLnIbl		CTRL+C CTRL+X	22, 11:41:00 AM	6.96 KB	123456	
			🔣 VDA 4994 Single KLT.nlbl	Paste	CTRL+V	2, 12:53:31 PM	14.21 KB	* 123456	
				Check Out				123456	7890123456
				Change Workflow Revision History File Log	Step			✓ File properties	
				Label Report Decommission				Type Dimensions	NiceLabel label file 6 X 6 in
				Remove	Del			File size Created	7.77 KB 11/8/2022, 12:53 PM
								Modified	11/8/2022, 12:53 PM
								 Description 	

You can execute a specific action on a single file or selection of several files.

The visual indicators (icon identifiers) on the folder or file names help users navigate and identify in which states files and folders are. Icon identifiers mark workflows, checked out, decommissioned, and read-only states. For example, a cyan bullet on top of the icons tells you that the folder has workflows enabled. Also, icons in front of the file names help you quickly identify a file type, such as a "label template", "image", "PDF", or "Microsoft Office document".

The breadcrumb navigation on top tells you precisely the folder path you are currently in. If you want to, you can hide the leftmost tree-view navigation and save some screen space.

For every action, the Control Center will respond with "Toast" status messages providing instant feedback.

1.2.2. Uploading files

The task of uploading files has been reduced to a simple drag & drop to the selected folder. You can drag & drop a single file, a group of files, and also folder structures.





Before the upload begins, you can provide the optional comment and choose to overwrite existing files. The Control Center will display the real-time upload status for each provided file.

1.2.3. Searching

The new UI also introduces updated search possibilities.

When you search for a specific file or folder name, the result will include items found in the current folder and its subfolders. This allows you to effectively search for an item within some folder structure, not always inside the entire document storage. The search results will include the found item's full name and its path.

You can also enable advanced search and set more detailed criteria, such as "workflow step", "printer name", "object name", or "variable name". This helps you narrow down the results in your busy document storage.

Advanced Search		×
File name	labels	
Workflow step		
Description		
Printer		
Object name		
Object content		
Variable name		
Variable default value		
	Cancel	Search

1.2.4. Keyboard shortcuts

You can speed up your usage of the Document Storage with the keyboard shortcuts. The UI supports the standard shortcuts **Ctrl+C** (for copy), **Ctrl+V** (for paste), **Ctr+X** (for cut), **Del** (for delete), but there is also support for **F2** (for rename of file or folder) and "**Menu**" key (to open context menu).

1.2.5. Recycle bin

The Recycle Bin is a new concept in Document Storage. Previously, the deleted files were kept in the original folder and were visible with a special view filter. From this release, all deleted files are visible in the Recycle Bin.

This makes the management of the deleted files more natural. We use the same principle that you are accustomed to from Windows operating system. You can see deleted files from the entire Document Storage displayed together.

When the file is deleted and moved into the Recycle Bin, you can still restore it to an original folder. Once you remove a file from the Recycle Bin, it is gone forever.

For all label files in the recycle bin, you can still download them, see the revision history and generate a label report (for label files).



NOTE

You can only restore a deleted file if its folder still exists in the Document Storage.

1.2.6. Previewing files

The label preview is automatically shown inline in the informational pane each time you select a label template. However, you can also open a dedicated Preview window to see more label properties, test the label responsiveness when you apply different values to variables, and see a high-resolution label preview.

To open a dedicated label preview, you can select **Preview** in the context menu or select **Preview** from the three dots menu in the informational pane.



You can manually type in values for variables to see how they fit on the label, but you can also load the values from the "variable files".

You can click the + and – buttons to change a zoom level, but there is also a more useful shortcut of holding the Ctrl key and rotating the mouse wheel while keeping the cursor on top of the preview.



NOTE

You can also preview PDF and image files.

1.2.7. Comparing files

The new Document Storage can also show visual differences between the revisions of the same file or between two different files. You can compare the content of the label templates and of the image files.

You can start the comparison by selecting the **Preview** in the context menu on a file or on a three-dots button. You can apply the business data to your label preview and see how they respond to the real data.

The visual differences in label compositions are shown with magenta color to easily spot changes.





NOTE

The comparison feature can be used in the workflow approval process when the approver must validate the changes made in the label template. The visual check of the old and updated labels can be the first step of the validation process.

1.2.8. Label report

The new UI retained also the ability to create the label reports already available in previous releases. You can create a report for one label template or for multiple selected labels. The report has been expanded to support JSON data syntax as well as XML.

The label report contains:

- · Detailed label metadata.
- A preview.

- · Workflow information.
- Structural report for text, barcode, and image objects.
- The list of variables and their properties.

bel report (GS1-128.nlbl)					
Download JSON Download XML					
Name	GS1-128.nlbl				
Type	NiceLabel label file			PRODUCT	
Dimensions	210 X 101.6 mm			038312345600000018	
File size					
Created				03831234560087 0001	
Modified				223344 20.05.16	
Description				223344 20.05.16	
Modified by	saso@nicelabel.com				
Workflow					
Workflow step Checked out				(02)03031224590007(37)0001	
Checked out by Revision					
Printer name					
Printer driver name				(15)468529(18)223344	
Path					
	/02012/2020/0211120/1101				
Path Url	/02012/2020/0211120/1101	e Lidos en la successión de la s		programs1123-129-00000118	+ 48.52% - 🕻
Url Workflow steps log	internistististeruniti	ilian menantarian en 11 p			+ 48.52% - 🖸
Url	internistististeruniti		Comment		44.52%
Url Workflow steps log	internistististeruniti	Workflow information	Comment orkflow steps	Propriet 12 Sectore 4	
Url Workflow steps log	internistististeruniti	Workflow information		And Constants	C 435% C C
Urf Workflow steps log Modified by	internistististeruniti	Workflow information		And Concern	C 4574 C ()
Workflow steps log Modified Modified by Text fields	Ima miatiki Lounka	Euclase retroiter to the El al	orkflow steps		C 4335 C (2)
Workflow steps log Mcdified by Text fields	Font	Lalace metro sua vola yer + tan- 18 yê Weeldow Information No v	Content		C 4426 C ()
Modified Modified by Text fields	Font Arial	Vertifiev information Vertifiev information Fort size 9	Content SSCC		4554 🖬 🕄
Vorkflow steps log Modified Modified by Text fields Name Text 1 Text5	Font Arial Arial	Verification metro La ren - El an Workflow information No v Fort size 9	Content SSCC COUNT		4555 2
Workflow steps log Workflow steps log Text fields Text fields Text 1 Text3	Fort Arial Arial Arial	Vorifice information Vorifice Font size 9 9 9	Content SSCC CONTENT		455%
b definition steps log Modified Modified by Control of the step log Control o	Franking and an and a second s	Workflow information No v Foot size 9 9 9 9 9	Content SSCC CONT CONTENT BATCHLOT		2 4435 2 2



NOTE

The structure of the XML report includes more information than the XML reports from the previous releases and has been changed. If your label catalog processing logic is based on the label reports from the Control Center, you will have to update your data parsing.

1.2.9. Revision history

Revision history helps you track changes on your file (revisions, workflow changes).

When you have a change request for a particular label template, the designer would open the template in the NiceLabel Designer application, make the necessary updates and save the template. NiceLabel Control Center will automatically raise the version number. You must provide a mandatory comment.

To see the past revisions of the label template, select the option **Revision History** from the context menu. You will see a list of all revisions for the selected template with their previews, properties and statuses. You can immediately spot which is the last approved revision (and thus used in the production).

The window provides you with quick access to the next actions that you might need:

- · Label Report. To generate a report about the label composition.
- Revert. To copy one of the past revisions in place of the newest revision.
- Compare revisions. To visually inspect the changes between label revisions.



The users can check out, check in files, and discard checked-out files.

1.2.10. Approval workflows

The approval workflows in the Document Storage are selectable per folder and are applied to all files in the folder. You can choose between predefined workflow types and also define your own workflow in the Administration section of the Control Center.

The action to select the workflow is available in the context menu when you right-click the folder name or select the three-dots button in the informational pane.

You can choose from:

- No workflow.
- · Inherit the workflow from the parent folder.
- · Select a workflow from a list of available workflows.

The new UI displays all pending workflow requests in a separate tab in Document Storage. This makes it easier for the workflow members to process their requests.

Current si	P Request approval	·	PRODUCT 03831234560000018 03831234560087 0001 223344 20.05.16 	
		©	(19) 0623(19)22344	11.0%
Workflow steps log				
worknow steps log		Workflow information	Comment	
Modified	Modified by			

To change the workflow step, select the command Change Workflow Step in the context menu. You can also change the workflow step for multiple files simultaneously.

1.2.11. Digital signature support

The updated Document Storage supports the digital signature – a mandatory option for companies from the life science field. The user has to re-authenticate before the file can be moved to the next step in the approval process.

Ç

TIP

You can enforce the digital signature for a step when the label template is approved for print production.

1.2.12. Decommissioning and recommissioning files

The new Document Storage also has the ability to decommission and recommission files.

Decommissioned files become unavailable for print and cannot be accessed by users with read-only permissions (for example, members of the default "Operator" access role). You might decommission a file that is of a seasonal nature and will not be needed in a while – it won't clutter the view of the print operators.

The decommissioned file will be identified with a red icon with the down-pointing arrow.



To make the file available again, you can recommission it.

1.2.13. Old NiceLabel file types (LBL, XFF, MIS) are not supported in Control Center anymore

The NiceLabel file types used in NiceLabel up to version 6 (LBL, XFF, MIS) are no longer considered a NiceLabel file type. They will appear as the unknown files in the Document Storage.

To use these file in new NiceLabel platforms you must first convert / migrate them to the new file types.

1.3. Printing labels from a browser



NOTE

This functionality is available in the NiceLabel Cloud products only.

NiceLabel 10.2 bring an exciting new printing experience. You can print labels directly from the Control Center user interface – so, directly from a browser. You don't need a local NiceLabel thin client to initiate the print. Being a browser-based feature, you can print labels from any operating system that can use Control Center in a browser, even macOS and Android devices.

When you choose to print a label from a browser, a default print form will open. You can assign values to the label variables, either typing them in manually or selecting a data file. You will see a nice label preview displaying the label with your data. The web print form also supports another new functionality in the 10.2 release – support for the Cloud data sources: **Excel Online** and **Google Sheets**. You can print labels with data coming from your selected Cloud data source.

When it comes to the printer selection, you can choose among all printers registered in your NiceLabel environment, including the Cloud-connected printers.

bles		Label Preview	Label 1 of 1 ▶	Full s
Product_name	PRODUCT		PROPUNT	
CC (Serial Shipping Container Code)	03831234560000001		PRODUCT	
unt of Trade Items			038312345600000018	
Best Before Date			CONTENT COUNT	
tch or Lot number	223344		03831234560087 0001	
GTIN AI02	03831234560087		BATCH/LOT BEST BEFORE	
			223344 20.05.16	
Q Search prir	Printer			
Q Search prin	Printer inter name or computer name	Computer	(02)03831234560087(37)0001	
	inter name or computer name	Computer	(02)03831234560087(37)0001	
Printer	inter name or computer name		(02)03831234560087(37)0001	
Printer	inter name or computer name	HEREIN BRITCH SCL. O		
Printer E ZEBRA RZ E ZEBRA RZ E ZEBRA RZ	inter name or computer name		(02)03831234560087(37)0001 (02)03831234560087(37)0001 (15)160520(10)223344	
Printer E ZEBRA RZI ZEBRA RZI ZEBRA RZI ZEBRA RZI ZEBRA RZI	inter name or computer name 2600 300dpi 2600 300dpi (redirected 2)	HEAVENE EXCLUSION OF		
Printer EZEBRA RZ ZEBRA RZ ZEBRA RZ ZEBRA RZ ZEBRA ZD ZEBRA ZD	inter name or computer name 2600 300dpi 2600 300dpi (redirected 2) 100 USB Card Printer	NEARING EARLING COLUMN		
Printer ZEBRA R2: <!--</td--><td>inter name or computer name 2600 300dpi 2600 300dpi 2600 300dpi (redirected 2) 100 USB Card Printer D420-203dpi ZPL</td><td>HINGHOUS BUTTLE JOCK. OF HINGHOUS BUTTLE JOCK. OF HINGHOUS BUTTLE JOCK. OF HINGHOUS BUTTLE JOCK. OF</td><td></td><td></td>	inter name or computer name 2600 300dpi 2600 300dpi 2600 300dpi (redirected 2) 100 USB Card Printer D420-203dpi ZPL	HINGHOUS BUTTLE JOCK. OF HINGHOUS BUTTLE JOCK. OF HINGHOUS BUTTLE JOCK. OF HINGHOUS BUTTLE JOCK. OF		

When you print to on-premise printers the data flow is as follows: the print request is sent from the browser to your local NiceLabel workstation that reports the availability of the selected printer. That NiceLabel workstation merges the label template with the provided data, creates a print job, and sends it to the printer. Your existing NiceLabel client act as a print agent on behalf of the Control Center.



NOTE

Your local NiceLabel client must be updated to version 10.2 to print labels from a browser.

The print from a browser will be executed with support for all native printer capabilities, such as printer fonts, barcodes, counters, RFID, and others. This is not graphical-only printing (GDI) and allows the same optimized outputs as when printing from Windows NiceLabel applications.

This new functionality is also beneficial in the approval workflows, as you can easily print out a label to visually inspect it – all without a need for your own locally installed NiceLabel client.



TIP

We have extended the Cloud Print API to support printing to your on-premise printers using the same mechanism.

1.4. Support for Cloud data sources

Cloud data sources are essential in real-time co-authoring scenarios when you want team members to work on the same data, collaborate, and share documents. This is even more prevalent today with the mix

of home and office workplaces. When it comes to label printing, you always have to provide a source of data that you want to see printed on a label. The data is not always stored in corporate-level storage, such as Microsoft Azure SQL, Amazon RDS, or some on-premise SQL server. The users will often save their data in some easy-accessible data storage, such as a spreadsheet saved in Microsoft OneDrive or Google Drive.

With the NiceLabel 10.2 release, NiceLabel has native support for **Excel Online** and **Google Sheets**. You can select a new type of data source in the database wizard. You first have to sign in using Microsoft or Google authentication and then you have access to all your Cloud data sources. The columns from your spreadsheets will be represented as the fields in the label template – the field names are taken from the first row of your data.



TIP

Printing is available from the spreadsheets that you have created and also from the spreadsheets shared with you by other users.

You can use Cloud data sources in all cases when you use forms to print your labels:

- · The new feature to print labels from a Control Center in a browser
- The forms in NiceLabel Print
- · The forms in NiceLabel Web Client



NOTE

Printing labels with Excel Online or Google Sheets is not supported by the integration platform – NiceLabel Automation.

1.5. Enhanced integrations

1.5.1. Asynchronous requests for LPS trigger

The LPS trigger type in the NiceLabel Automation enabled the quick and easy replacement of the Loftware LPS integration system with the Loftware NiceLabel. In this release, the LPS trigger support has been expanded with the support for asynchronous requests.

When you issue a **synchronous request** to the LPS trigger, NiceLabel Automation processes the data, prints the labels, and then provides the status back synchronously – over the same communication channel the client has established. The client waits until NiceLabel Automation provides a status.

When you issue an **asynchronous request** to the LPS trigger, NiceLabel Automation immediately responds with "OK, I have received your data – here is your job number." The client disconnects. However, after the job is processed and printed, the client can send an inquiry about the job status. Because the inquiry

does not happen in sync with the processing but at a later time, the communication is referred to as "asynchronous".



NOTE

You need NiceLabel Cloud Business or NiceLabel LMS Enterprise (or higher) to use the LPS trigger. The trigger must also be enabled through your license.

1.5.2. Support for double quote characters in PAS files

The parsing of PAS files has been updated to allow a single double quote character (") to be treated as regular text content and used on the label. Previously, NiceLabel expected the double quote to be used as a text qualifier – a character placed around each field to signify the data for that field. When you provide a single double quote character in the field data, it will print as expected. The most common usage of this scenario is printing double quotes as an inch indicator.

For example:

```
*FORMAT,part10.nlbl
Part_ID,1/4"PLEX
*QUANTITY,1
*PRINTLABEL
```

1.5.3. Updated HTTP status codes for Workday API

You can provide multiple print jobs in a single request to the Workday API. The response will contain statuses for each print job in the same order as they were provided in the request. The HTTP status code can be just one per request. Because Workday relies heavily on the status codes, not so much on the response message, we have changed the rules for the returned status code.

The API returns the following status codes:

- · 200. All print jobs in the request were processed successfully.
- 500. All print jobs in the request failed.
- 207. Some print jobs were processed successfully and some failed. The response body contains status details for each print job.

1.5.4. Enabled multi-threading on Windows 11

When Windows 11 was initially released, it also introduced a problem in the internal libraries handling GDI printing (this is the printing of graphical objects). NiceLabel uses these libraries to image the GDI-only objects on the label, such as a Rich Text Box object. The problem occurred in multi-threaded print scenarios, where multiple labels were being processed at the same time. This is typically an integration scenario where NiceLabel Automation could process many labels simultaneously.

Until Microsoft resolved the problem, NiceLabel Automation was locked to process just one label template at a time. We sacrificed the processing power in favor of successful print.

With NiceLabel 10.2 release, the multi-threaded print is enabled again. Additionally, there is an option available in the **product.config** - NiceLabel's configuration file – to disable the multi-threading support yourself.

1.5.5. Get Label Information action is available in Automation Pro

The **Get Label Information** action provides you with the label metadata information, such as label dimension, name of the used printer driver, and a list of all variables. This information is useful in integration scenarios, where you might need to know variable names from the label template in your business system – to send data to them at print time.

From this release, the action is available with the NiceLabel Automation Pro product level.

1.5.6. Updates to the XML command file structure

The NiceLabel's XML command file has been updated to support the additional parameters from the Print action. The "session_print_job" XML element supports the following parameters provided as XML attributes: skip, identical_copies, and number_of_sets.

An example:

1.6. Cloud Print API updates

The Cloud Print API is the Application Programming Interface based on the HTTP REST that provides the ability to print labels to your printers. From the 10.2 release, you can use the Cloud Print API not only for printing to true cloud-connected printers but also for your on-premise printers that do not have native cloud capabilities.

In this case, the Cloud Print API will forward the print request to the specified local workstation onpremise, which will create a print job and send it to the printer. The communication from API to the local environment take place over the encrypted and protected Azure Servise Bus connection.



NOTE

The API works as the proxy, forwarding the request to processing to a local workstation.

The Document API is documented in the Developer Portal website.

1.7. Document API updates

The Document API is the Application Programming Interface based on the HTTP REST that provides the ability to run the actions in the Control Center's Document Storage from the outside – not using the UI available in the Control Center.

The Document API was heavily updated for NiceLabel 10.2 release to support all new functionalities introduced with the new release. The totally redesigned UI works on the backbone of the Document API. The new functionalities from the UI are also available through the API should you want programmable interaction with the files.

For example, the Document API is useful, when you want to update file statuses from your PowerForms applications or from the Automation configurations. This is a powerful feature, but it does require more technical skills from the users.

The Document API is documented in the Developer Portal website.

Here are some highlights from the new release:

- · Get all files that are in the waiting for approval state
- Rename a folder
- · Sort the items in a list by a specified field
- · Decommission and recommission files
- · Get a changelog for the specified folder
- · Get a changelog for the specified file
- · Get a revision history list for a file
- · Support for sending notification emails
- Get a list of deleted files (from the Recycle Bin)
- · Support for thumbnails in responses
- And many more

2. New in Designers

2.1. ANSI MH.10.8.2 (ASC) function update

The ANSI MH10.8.2 standard received the update on May 11, 2022.

The updated version of the standard defines the following new data identifiers: 25V, 32Q, 55P.

2.2. Updated support for GS1-128 standard

The GS1 published the agreed changes to the GS1 General Specifications. NiceLabel software supports a new Application Identifier AI 4309 for Ship-to / Deliver-to GEO location.

2.3. Support for "bar width reduction/pixel shaving" in 2D codes

NiceLabel already added the bar width reduction/pixel shaving support for 1D barcodes in the 10.0 release. The 10.2 release adds support for 2D codes.

Bar width reduction or pixel shaving is a method of adjusting the graphics output of barcodes to compensate for press gain. The press gain (also known as the ink spread) is a common cause of poor barcode performance. When you print with an inkjet printer, the barcode is produced from tiny drops of ink. As the ink drops are sprayed on the media, they dry quickly, but there is often some time for the drops to spread a little bit before they set permanently, causing the elements to be slightly larger than intended. This can result in barcodes not printing within specifications.

2.4. Label Converter updates

The Label Converter has been updated to better support the conversion of Codesoft labels.

- Importing of inline variables in the text was improved, when a user creates a new text in Codesoft and maps a variable by drag & drop.
- Importing text with a black background as Inverse was improved, when a user creates a new text in Codesoft and chooses white font color and black background color.
- Importing images with a variable data source, when a user creates a new image and chooses the data source to be a variable, the image data source is correctly imported as a variable.

• Importing EAN-13 barcodes, when a user sets the check digit option to 1. In NiceLabel Designer, such EAN-13 barcode has the option "Include Check Digit" enabled and set to "Verify the provided check digit". NiceLabel will not calculate and add the check digit but still verify the provided one.

3. New in Label Management System

3.1. Windows Server 2012 R2 is no longer supported

The software system requirements have changed for the NiceLabel software installation.

While Microsoft still supports this operating system with Extended Security Updates for a few more years, NiceLabel no longer supports the operating system **Windows Server 2012 R2**.

3.2. Microsoft SQL Server 2016 or above is required for the Control Center

The software system requirements have changed for the NiceLabel Control Center installation.

You need Microsoft SQL Server 2016 or newer to install the system database for the NiceLabel Control Center and the NiceLabel Web Printing components.



NOTE

If you currently use Control Center with previous releases of Microsoft SQL Server, you need to upgrade the SQL Server before you can upgrade the NiceLabel software.

3.3. The application server feature is no longer supported

The "application server" feature was removed from the on-premise product NiceLabel LMS Enterprise. It provided support for Microsoft RemoteApp functionality where you could configure Windows to run NiceLabel Designer on the server and display just the application's window on the user's computer. The functionality was difficult to set up and required additional Microsoft licenses.

NiceLabel Cloud products offer a much better user experience running NiceLabel client locally and integrated directly with the Cloud-based Document Storage.

3.4. Configurable execution timeout in DBTool

DBTool is an advanced installation tool for the installation of the NiceLabel Control Center database for on-premise NiceLabel LMS products. We added the configuration parameter to support a configurable SQL execution timeout.

In busy network environments and busy Microsoft SQL Servers, the execution of SQL scripts might fail because the default execution timeout has been exceeded. The installation fails and the error message appears.

The new configuration parameter allows you to define a custom timeout period.

4. New in printer drivers

4.1. New printer family drivers

Loftware has extended its NiceLabel print platform to support new printer models from Koenig & Bauer.

4.2. Added support for enhanced status checking

The new release of NiceLabel drivers brings support for a new type of extended status. This status is exported in JSON format that you can use as input data in your PowerForms applications or Automation integrations. The enhanced status reporting is available for the following printer brands: Videojet, Zebra, Linx, and Epson.